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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

This Addendum No. 1 forms a part of the Request for Proposals and modifies the original 

solicitation package as noted below and is issued to incorporate the following: 
 

1) Extension of Proposal Due Date: The Proposal due date has been extended to 

Wednesday, September 7, 2016, at 2:00 P.M. EDT;  
 

2) Responses to Questions: Total of fifty-six (56) questions, attached hereto as Attachment 

No. 1.; 
 

3) Revision of Exhibit A: Scope of Services, Section A: Scope of Work. The statement 

“The audit firm is also required to audit the combining and individual fund financial 

statements and supporting schedules and the schedule of federal assistance.” is hereby 

removed;  

 

4) Attachment No. 2: Single Audit Reports: attached hereto as Attachment No. 2; and 

 

5) Attachment No. 3: Management Letters: attached hereto as Attachment No. 3. 

 
 

The Proposal due date HAS been modified and Proposals are due on Wednesday, 

September 7, 2016 and should be time stamped in no later than 2:00 P.M. EDT and 

delivered to the address listed below: 

 

Adam L. Smith, Esq., CPPO, CPPB, CPPM,  

CPP, CIPC, CISCC, CIGPM, CPPC 

Chief Procurement Officer 

Department of Procurement 

55 Trinity Avenue, S. W.  

City Hall South, Suite 1900 

Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
 

 

**All other pertinent information is to remain unchanged** 
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Acknowledgment of Addendum No. 1 

 

Proponents must sign below and return this form with Proposal response to the 

Department of Procurement. 

 

Proponents must sign below and return this form with Proposal response to the Department of 

Procurement, 55 Trinity Avenue, City Hall South, Suite 1900, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 as 

acknowledgment of receipt of this Addendum.  

 

This is to acknowledge receipt of FC-9112, External Financial Audit Services, Addendum 

No. 1 on this the ______ day of ____________, 20__. 

 

 

 

             

       Legal Company Name of Proponent 

 

              

       Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

              

       Printed Name 

 

              

       Title 

 

              

       Date 
 

 



 

 

Attachment No. 1 

Questions and Answers 
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Questions and Answers 

 

1) In prior years, have there been any delays in the audit due to delays in receiving 

information from third parties or other reasons? 

Answer: In recent years there have been minor delays in the audit primarily due 

to implementation of new Governmental Accounting Standards Board rules 

requiring input from outside parties. 

2) Were there any disagreements with the current auditor? 

Answer: No. 

3) Have there been any recent audits from federal departments noting compliance issues? 

Answer: We are aware of the following federal audits of grant programs between 

2014 and 2016 noting compliance issues: Public Safety grants, audited by Dept. 

of Justice; Workforce Development grants, audited by Dept. of Labor; Weed & 

Seed grants, audited by Dept. of Labor. 

4) What were the 2014, 2015 and 2016 audit fees in total?  Have there been any out of scope 

billings over the past three years? 

Answer: You may submit an open records request for this information.  There 

haven’t been any out of scope billings related to the audit.  

5) Were any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses issued over the past three 

years?  If so, could the letter documenting these issues be provided? 

Answer: There have been significant deficiencies and material weaknesses issued 

over the past three years. See Attachment No. 3: Management Letters.  

6) How many audit adjustments were made for fiscal year 2015? 

Answer: One (1) recorded adjustment and nine (9) unrecorded adjustments were 

made for FY15. 

7) Does the city have internal documentation of controls over key financial cycles? 

Answer: Yes 

8) Have any year end asset/liability/deferred outflows or inflows accounts been difficult to 

audit in prior years?   

Answer: No, these accounts have not been especially difficult to audit.  

a. Are detailed sub ledgers maintained for material receivables and accrued liability 

balances? 

Answer: Yes, transaction detail for receivables and accrued liabilities are 

maintained in sub-ledgers. 
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9) Is the City current on the continuing disclosure requirements related to public debt? 

Answer: Yes. 

10) Please provide the approximate date(s) when the trial balances for the individual funds 

will be ready for the auditor. 

Answer: The trial balance report is provided to the auditors at the end of August. 

11) What was the timing of preliminary and final fieldwork in the past?  Will the City be 

requesting different timing under this audit contract? 

Answer: Generally the reliability testing on financial systems (IT audit) begins 

the first part of April.  The IT audit is completed in June.  The preliminary 

fieldwork (interim audit work) in the areas of pensions, revenues, accounts 

payable, capital assets, procurement, debt and controls begins before the end of 

April.  Preliminary work wraps up the middle of July, thus giving the City 

sufficient time to close the fiscal year and prepare for the final fieldwork. A 

period 13 is opened in which the City is reviewing and making final entries to 

close the fiscal year in August. Final fieldwork begins after Labor Day.  

The City does not anticipate changing this timing under a new audit contract.   

12) How many weeks are the auditors typically on site for preliminary and final fieldwork for 

the audit, including at each the funds’ locations with separate deliverables? 

Answer: For preliminary fieldwork, see Response #11. The final fieldwork 

begins after Labor Day.  The Department of Watershed Management and the 

Department of Aviation will finish early to mid-November.  The Central 

Government field work is completed the end of November.   See Response #11 

for further detail relating to the preliminary fieldwork.   

13) Page 5 of Exhibit A indicates that the auditor will provide the City Auditor with monthly 

reporting of budgeted hours to actual. Can you please provide us with this budget to 

actual summary report for the June 30, 2015 audit? 

Answer: The total audit hours for the fiscal year 2015 audit were: 

Central Government 4,162 

Watershed 1,965 

Pensions 1,917 

A133 1,453 

Airport 1,382 

Total 10,879 

 

We did not track budget to actual variances in the last few years of the contract. 
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14) Has the City implemented policies and procedures to reflect the requirements of the 

newly issued uniform grant guidance including procurement policies, subrecipient 

monitoring, determining whether cross-over grants follow new or old guidance and 

allowable costs? 

Answer: The City is implementing the Uniform Grant Guidelines.  The exception 

is the procurement area, which the City has elected to delay until July 1, 2017.   

15) Please provide the number of hours by project that has been spent by the previous 

auditors. 

Answer: See Response #13. 

16) Please provide the current subcontractors/SBEs that are currently working with the prime 

contractor on the current audit contract? Please also provide an assessment of the 

performance of these SBEs/subcontractors. 

Answer: You may submit an open records request for this information. The 

subcontractors are selected by the primary audit firm, and that firm assesses the 

performance of its subs. 

17) Can you provide the expectations for attending council and committee meetings of the 

selected firm?   

Answer: The audit firm presents twice each year to the Audit Committee: its risk 

assessment and approach early in the audit, and its results, management letter 

observations and required communications when the audit is completed. The audit 

firm also presents audit results and management letter observations to the Finance 

Executive Committee of the City Council. Finally, the audit firm presents each of 

the three pension plan audits to the respective pension board. The selected firm is 

also expected to attend the Finance Executive Committee meeting when they take 

up legislation to approve the new contract in November or December of 2016. If 

the contract is renewed after the 3-year contract period, the firm would attend the 

FEC meetings when the one-year renewals are discussed. 

a. Also are there separate meetings the auditor should plan on attending for the 

Department of Watershed and Aviation that are required.  

Answer: During the audit there are separate regular meetings with the 

Departments of Watershed, Aviation and Finance, as well as the 

administrators for the pension boards and the departments who manage 

grants included in the Single Audit/Uniform Guidance.      

18) What is the timing of interim work performed by the current auditors? If interim work 

has been performed, has it been performed for both the financial audits and the single 

audit? 

Answer: See Response #11 for timing of interim audit work. This has not 

generally included work on the single audit.  
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19) When will the books be closed and ready for the final audit work to be performed? 

Answer: See Response #12. 

20) Please provide a listing of the various IT systems that are used to process financial 

transactions that are subject to review by the auditors? 

Answer: IT testing includes two city-wide systems, two systems used only by 

Watershed Management, and one system used only by Aviation: 

i. Oracle E-Business Suite(ERP)-GF : City-wide collection of integrated 

internet-based applications that includes Financial Management, Human 

Capital Management, Advanced Procurement, and Business Intelligence 

modules. 

ii. Kronos Workforce Central-GF : City-wide web-based time and 

attendance application that records hours of work and use of leave for all 

city employees and provides data for payroll. 

iii. Department of Watershed Management 

 enQuesta:  Billing system for water and sewer customers. 

 Equinox:  an automated meter reading system that provides usage data 

to enQuesta. 

iv. Department of Aviation 

 Propworks-DOA:  used to manage leases, property, and revenue 

collection for the airport. 
 

21) When is the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) generally available? 

Answer: A draft of the SEFA is available the end of July.  After the books are 

closed at the end of August, the final SEFA is available in September. 

22) Can you provide a three-year schedule of Major programs that have been audited by the 

current auditors? 

Answer: See Attachment No. 2: Single Audit Reports. 

23) What were the audit adjustments for the last 2 years? 

Answer: See Response #6 for FY15 adjustments. For FY14 there were three (3) 

recorded and twenty (20) unrecorded adjustments. 

24) What are the required Communications Letter and Management letter for the last 2 years? 

Answer: See Attachment No. 3: Management Letters. Required 

communications to the audit committee have included no issues that required 

disclosure. 

25) Can the City provide the single audit report for the last 2 years? 

Answer: See Attachment No. 2: Single Audit Reports. 
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26) Has audit fieldwork for aviation, watershed and general/other funds typically been 

conducted simultaneously? 

Answer: Yes. 

27) Can the City provide a breakdown of hours and fees for the last 2 years of audit by 

area?  Any amounts directly paid to Subs?   

Answer: See Response #3 for hours.  The City does not directly pay 

subcontractors. Fee information may be requested through an open records 

request. 

28) Did incumbent auditor sub 35% last 2 years? If so, who were the sub(s)? 

Answer: The incumbent audit firm has subcontracted a total of 26.4% in each of 

the 5 years of the contract, 18.1% to a minority-owned business and 8.3% to a 

female-owned business. You may submit an open records request for the names 

of the firms. The data on which the percentages are based have been recently 

updated, leading to the increased percentage.  

29) Has the incumbent done any preliminary fieldwork prior to year-end? 

Answer: Yes. 

30) For the Employee Benefit Plans, when is the fieldwork performed on these?  

Answer: Preliminary fieldwork in the April through mid-June timeframe.  Final 

fieldwork begins the mid-September and ends the third week in October.  Pension 

reports are issued no later than October 31
st
. 

31) When does the City plan on awarding the engagement? 

Answer: We hope to notify the winning proponent by mid-October and introduce 

legislation for City Council approval of the contract by mid-November. 

32) Exhibit A, p.1 of the RFP states that “The audit firm is also required to audit the 

combining and individual fund financial statements and supporting schedules and the 

schedule of federal assistance.”  We note that the level of assurance provided by the audit 

firm in 2015 associated with these deliverables consisted of “in-relation-to” opinions, 

rather than “full-scope audit” opinions as requested in the RFP.  Can you confirm that the 

required level of assurance associated with these deliverables is consistent with that 

provided in 2015, or has the required level of assurance been changed? 

Answer: This sentence was included in error and should be disregarded. The 

incumbent audit firm’s “in relation to” opinion language is the level of assurance 

that the City requires. 
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33) Exhibit A, p.2 of the RFP, Schedule of Deliverables.  The second deliverable in the 

schedule is identified as “Report on Internal Controls”.  Can you confirm whether this is 

intended to identify the Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 

Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Contracts at the entity level (the Yellow Book 

Report)? 

Answer: Yes.  The Report on Internal Control is intended to identify reporting on 

internal control and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 

and grant agreements as required by Government Auditing Standards (2011) 4.19-

4.29. 

34) What is the timeline when the City will have Final Trial Balance available? 

Answer: The final trial balance is provided to the auditor no later than September 

1
st
. 

35) What is the timeline for the City to generate Financial Statements and Notes disclosures? 

Answer: A draft of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), 

including all financial statements, is provided to the auditor by the end of 

October.    

36) Can you expound on the responsibility of the independent auditor in assisting in the 

preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report?   

Answer: Management is responsible for the preparation of the CAFR, which is 

inclusive of the financial statements.  The independent auditor assists in the 

preparation by auditing and reviewing the CAFR and provides feedback.   

37) What software and/or platform is utilized as CAFR reporting model? 

Answer: The Oracle ERP system includes the financial module that “houses” the 

City’s financial data.  The financial data is pulled from the ERP System using 

Hyperion to run the financial statements used in the CAFR.  The CAFR, notes and 

tables are prepared using MS Word and Excel.   

38) Will the City be responsible to submit required data to the Clearinghouse in regards to the 

OMB Uniform Grant Guidance Report? 

Answer: No. The auditing firm will be required to submit data to the 

Clearinghouse. 

39) What deliverable reports are subject to the Multiple Award provision in the RFP? 

Answer: The Audit Committee is unlikely to make multiple awards for this RFP. 

This language is included in most City solicitations, but it is not anticipated in this 

case.  
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40) In the more recent audits, what was the City’s experience in regard to timeliness in 

reference to the audit deliverables from the discretely presented component units? 

Answer: The City experienced late receipt of the draft and final CAFR from one 

component unit in FY15. Otherwise, they have been generally timely.  

41) In Scope of Services page 4, 5
th

 paragraph addresses out of scope work and its per diem 

or hourly rate, should this be addressed in Cost Proposal Exhibit A.1? 

Answer: Yes. 

42) What were the corresponding and respective fees for the deliverables in the 2015 audit?  

Answer: See Response #4. 

43) What were the nature and number of Journal Entries made by the independent auditor in 

2015 Audit? 

Answer: There were no Journal Entries made by the independent auditor in 

FY15. See previous questions about audit adjustments, recorded and unrecorded. 

44) What were the actual hours incurred by the independent auditor in 2015 Audit? 

Answer: See Response #13. 

45) Section 3.2.3.2.7 requires a list of five (5) references as part of the resumes of key team 

members.  This section refers to the Required Submittal Form 7, Reference List.  At that 

form (Part IV), it requires three (3) references of the Proponent.  Are you requiring 5 

references at the key team member level, 5 references at the Proponent level, or is the 

requirement for 3 at the Proponent level, or something different?  

Answer: References are requested both for Key Personnel, as well as at the 

Proponent level.  We are requesting that the resumes for key personnel include 

reference contacts for the listed relevant projects, which should be a minimum of 

five (5). Required Submittal Form 7 requests three (3) references at the Proponent 

level. 

46) On page 7 of Part 1 of the RFP, section 3.2.3.2.7 states that a minimum of five references 

are required, and indicates that Form 7 must be included.  Can you please clarify this 

requirement? As this is under the team member resume section 3.2.3.2, are we to include 

5 Form 7’s for each team member as individual references?   Additionally, Form 7 

indicates that there must be a minimum of three references provided, but section 3.2.3.2.7 

indicates that the minimum is five.  

Answer: See Response #45. 

47) Please confirm how many references the City requires, in which sections and in what 

format (ex. form or no form) 

Answer: See Response #45. 
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48) The link included in the RFP to allow prime bidders to obtain a listing of certified SBEs 

is not currently working.  Can a revised link be provided ASAP? 

Answer: The link was previously under repair. It is now fully operable. Go to: 

www.atlantaga.gov/contractcompliance to access the listing of certified SBEs.  

49) On page 1 of the Small Business Opportunity Program Policy Statement, the last sentence 

refers to goals for minority and female business enterprises.  Should this read “small 

business enterprises”? 

Answer: Yes. The goals for this project are for certified Small Business 

Enterprises (SBE).  

50) Section 3.2.5 requests a letter from each essential subcontractor/sub-consultant indicating 

that the firm concurs with the role and responsibility the proponent describes.  Is this 

requirement satisfied by submitting the “Letter of Intent” form provided in the SBE 

section of Appendix A or does the City require a separate letter on letterhead from the 

sub in addition to the “Letter of Intent” form?  

Answer: All proponents must submit a signed “Letter of Intent” for each sub-

consultant included in their proposal. Please be sure to have ALL sub-consultants 

sign the Letter of Intent for inclusion in the proposal prior to the proposal due 

date.   

51) Appendix A of the RFP, p.5 the SBE compliance letter – How should proposing firms 

interpret the 35% SBE participation rate? For example, is that to be interpreted as 

maximum SBE participation, minimum SBE participation, target SBE participation, or 

should it be interpreted in some other way? 

Answer: The 35% SBE sub-consultant participation guideline should be 

interpreted to mean that each proponent should subcontract a minimum of 35% of 

the overall project to certified SBEs. 

52) Appendix B – Insurance and Bonding Requirements. Based on the review of this section 

by our insurance carrier we have identified three exceptions that would have to revised 

prior to the signing of the required Insurance Form 4.1 by the insurance carrier.  They are 

as follows: 1)      Our Workers’ Compensation is $500,000, not $1,000,000.  Our 

umbrella policy would cover any overage;  2)      Our professional liability is per claim, 

not occurrence and 3)  We don’t have any owned vehicles so our automobile insurance 

won’t state that.  Can we make those changes on the Insurance Form 4.1? 

Answer: 1) The Workers Compensation limit will remain the same, but if you 

have a umbrella policy that covers the difference between the coverage you have 

and the required coverage then this will suffice. 2) Professional liability coverage 

must have a $1,000,000 limit per occurrence and annual aggregate. 3) If you are 

selected for the contract and your company does not own vehicles this coverage 

may be waived. 

 

 

http://www.atlantaga.gov/contractcompliance
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53) Does the attached [Company’s Business Information entry], pulled from the Georgia 

Secretary of State website, satisfy the “Certificate of Authority” required on Form 2? 

Answer: Yes. 

54) Form 4.1-Insurance- Does it cover all insurance and can copies be made if more than one 

insurance company are applicable? 

Answer: Yes. 

55) Part V - Draft professional services agreement -  Our legal counsel is reviewing the draft 

document included in the RFP.  If there are edits requested by our legal counsel should 

we indicate those suggested edits in our response to the RFP or should that wait till a firm 

is selected and then those items will be worked out at that time with the selected firm? 

Answer: Please include any requested modifications to the draft Professional 

Services Agreement within Volume II of your proposal.  

56) Can the City expound on what specific information in RFP in the City’s  opinion should 

be redacted in reference to CD #2? 

Answer: As stated in the RFP, CD Two (2) should be a redacted version of the 

hard copy Proposal. Please refer to the Georgia Open Records Acts (O.C.G.A. § 

50-18-72) for information not subject to public disclosure. 
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Single Audit Reports 

 

  

























































































































































































 

 

Attachment No. 3 

Management Letters 

 

 

 
































































































